
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Assets of Community Value and Local Heritage List 
Committee 

 
 
Date: Tuesday, 17th August, 2021 

Time: 2.00 pm 

Venue: Council Chamber - Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, 
CB11 4ER 

Broadcast:    Link here  
 
Chair: Councillor C Day 
Members: Councillors J Evans, R Freeman, P Lees and L Pepper 
 
 

  

 
  
Public Speaking 

 

At the start of the meeting there will be an opportunity of up to 15 minutes for 

members of the public to ask questions and make statements subject to having 

given notice by 12 noon two working days before the meeting. Please register your 

intention to speak at this meeting by writing to committee@uttlesford.gov.uk 

 

Public speakers will be offered the opportunity for an officer to read out their 

questions or statement at the meeting, or to attend the meeting to read out their 

questions or statement themselves.  

 

Those who would like to watch the meeting live can do so virtually here. The 

broadcast will be made available as soon as the meeting begins. 

 

Public Document Pack

https://uttlesford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=335&MId=5850&Ver=4
mailto:committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
https://uttlesford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=335&MId=5850&Ver=4


AGENDA 
PART 1 

 
Open to Public and Press 

 
 
1 Apologies for Absence and Declarations of Interest 

 
 

 To receive apologies for absence and declarations of interest. 
 

 

2 Minutes of the previous meeting 
 

4 - 5 

 To consider the minutes of the previous meeting.  
 

 

3 Nomination of Hill Green as an Asset of Community Value 
 

6 - 17 

 To consider the nomination of Hill Green as an ACV. 
 

 

 



MEETINGS AND THE PUBLIC 
 
In light of the recent High Court judgement regarding the extension of remote 
meeting regulations, Council, Cabinet and Committee meetings will now be returning 
to in-person and will be held on-site from Thursday 6th May 2021. However, due to 
social distancing measures and capacity considerations in line with the Council’s risk 
assessment, public access and participation will continue to be encouraged virtually 
until further notice. 
 
Members of the public are welcome to listen live to the debate of any of the Council’s 
Cabinet or Committee meetings. All live broadcasts and meeting papers can be 
viewed on the Council’s calendar of meetings webpage. 
 
Members of the public are permitted to speak at this meeting and will be encouraged 
to do so via the video conferencing platform Zoom. If you wish to make a statement 
via Zoom video link, you will need to register with Democratic Services by midday 
two working days before the meeting. There is a 15 minute public speaking limit and 
3 minute speaking slots will be given on a first come, first served basis. Those 
wishing to make a statement via video link will require an internet connection and a 
device with a microphone and video camera enabled. Those wishing to make a 
statement to the meeting who do not have internet access can do so via telephone. 
 
Technical guidance on the practicalities of participating via Zoom will be given at the  
point of confirming your registration slot, but if you have any questions regarding the  
best way to participate in this meeting please call Democratic Services on 01799 510  
369/410/467/548 who will advise on the options available.  
 
Agenda and Minutes are available in alternative formats and/or languages. For more  
information please call 01799 510510. 
 
Facilities for people with disabilities  
 
If you are deaf or have impaired hearing and would like a signer available at a 
meeting, please contact committee@uttlesford.gov.uk or phone 01799 510 
369/410/467/548 as soon as possible prior to the meeting. 
 

For information about this meeting please contact Democratic Services 

Telephone: 01799 510369, 510548, 510410 or 510467 

Email: Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk 

 

 

General Enquiries 
Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, CB11 4ER 

Telephone: 01799 510510 
Fax: 01799 510550 

Email: uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk 
Website: www.uttlesford.gov.uk 

 

 

mailto:committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk
http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/


 

 
 

ASSETS OF COMMUNITY VALUE AND LOCAL HERITAGE LIST 
COMMITTEE held at COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, LONDON 
ROAD, SAFFRON WALDEN, CB11 4ER, on MONDAY, 21 JUNE 2021 at 2.00 
pm 
 
 
Present: Councillor C Day (Chair) 
 Councillors J Evans and P Lees 
 
Officers in 
attendance: 

C Edwards (Democratic Services Officer), C Gibson (Democratic 
Services Officer), J Hill (Planning Policy Officer) and E Smith 
(Solicitor) 

 
Public D Tunmer (C Tunmer and M Wellings also in attendance). 
Speaker:   
 
 

ACV12   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Freeman and Pepper.  
 
 

ACV13   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 22 April 2021 were approved. 
 
 

ACV14   NOMINATION OF THE STAG AS AN ASSET OF COMMUNITY VALUE  
 
The Planning Policy Officer presented a report asking Members to consider the 
nomination of The Stag public house, Little Easton, as an Asset of Community 
Value (AoCV). The nomination had been made by Little Easton Parish Council. 
 
The Planning Policy Officer outlined the necessary criteria that needed to be 
established for an asset to be considered as an AoCV. She said that the public 
house was split between 50% bar and 50% restaurant and confirmed that the 
field at the rear of the public house was excluded from the nomination but that 
the nomination had been recommended for listing.  
 
There were no questions from the public speaker at this point. 
 
In response to various questions relating to a recent submission of a planning 
application for a residential development to the rear of the property, the Legal 
Officer said that this was a separate consideration and was of no relevance to 
the nomination. Further discussion then took place relating to the access to the 
public house car park and clarification of boundaries. Mr Tunmer confirmed in 
response to a question from the Chair that one of the buildings shown on the 
plans was an old chicken shed that was used for storage. 
 
Mr Tunmer then gave his presentation. He said that he was opposed to the 
nomination and that an AoCV was not necessary; he said that he was concerned 

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



 

 
 

that approval as an AoCV could hinder the outstanding Planning Application for 
the field at the rear of the public house. He said he was concerned that the 
number of local events taking place in the public house had been exaggerated 
and that most local residents did not regularly support the public house.  
He also commented that there was a good village hall at Little Easton. He said 
that he had supported the landlord throughout the pandemic; he had originally 
purchased the public house in 2013 and the lease would be renewed in February 
2022 for a further six years and that this would prevent any change of use as his 
intention was to continue to maintain the public house as a going-concern. 
 
It was further confirmed that approval of an AoCV would not affect the on-going 
planning application and that any listing was not a listing in the sense of a 
heritage listing. 
 
Mr Tunmer said that he would have had no objection if the application had just 
been to nominate the public house without the car park. 
 
Members of the public left the meeting and the Committee retired to make its 
decision at 2.55pm.  
 
 
Before a decision could be reached a number of emails in support of the 
application were received. As a result it was decided to defer a decision in this 
matter in order to hear additional representation before the nomination is 
determined. The meeting will be reconvened. 
 
 

Page 5



Committee: Assets of Community Value and Local 
Heritage List Committee 

Date: 

Tuesday 17 August 
2021 

Title: Nomination of Hill Green (recreation land and 
cricket pavilion), Clavering, as an Asset of 
Community Value UTT/21/2181/ACV 

Report 
Author: 

Joanna Hill, Planning Officer 
jhill@uttlesford.gov.uk 

 

 
Summary 
 

1. The Localism Act 2011 introduces a concept of an ‘Asset of Community Value’ 
(ACV). Section 87 of the Localism Act places a duty of Local Authorities to 
‘maintain a list of land in its area that is land of community value’. 

2. An Asset is of community value if (in the opinion of the local authority) either: 

 an actual current use of the building or other land, that is not an ancillary 
use, furthers the social wellbeing or social interests of the local community; 
and 

 it is realistic to think that there can continue to be non-ancillary use of the 
building or other land, which will further (whether or not in the same way) 
the social wellbeing or social interests of the local community; 

or 

 there is a time in the recent past when an actual use of the building or 
other land that was not an ancillary use furthered the social wellbeing or 
social interests of the local community; and 

 it is realistic to think that there is a time in the next five years when there 
could be non-ancillary use of the building or other land that would further 
(whether or not in the same way as before) the social wellbeing or social 
interests of the local community. 

3. The Act states that “social interests” “includes (in particular) each of the 
following – (a) cultural interests, (b) recreational interests and (c) sporting 
interests.  

4. Assets of Community Value are buildings or land which involve the physical 
use by the community and include for example a village shop, pub, community 
centre, allotment or recreation ground. 

5. The purpose of this report is to enable members to determine: 

a) whether there is a valid nomination; 

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



b) whether the use of the building (current or recent past) furthers the social 
wellbeing or social interests of the community; 

c) whether it is realistic to think that in the next 5 years the building could be 
used to further the social wellbeing or social interests of the community.  

In considering these questions, members need to consider principal, rather 
than ancillary, uses of the building.  

If members conclude that the answers to these questions are “yes”, the 
building should be included in the list of ACV’s.  

Recommendation 
 

6. Recommended for listing: On the basis that this is a valid nomination; the 
current use of the recreational land at Hill Green, Clavering, including cricket 
field and pavilion furthers the social wellbeing and social interests of the local 
community; and it is realistic to think that this non-ancillary use will continue, it 
is recommended that the site be listed as an Asset of Community Value.   

Financial Implications 
 

7. There are direct financial implications arising at this stage which relate to the 
formal process of identifying and contacting asset owners, time of Planning 
Policy and Legal Officers and, if relevant, registering an asset as a Land 
Charge. These costs can be met from existing budget and staff resources. 

8. There is also an unquantifiable financial risk to the Council, if there was a 
claim for compensation.  This needs to be kept under review and at an 
appropriate time consideration should be given to establishing a contingency 
reserve to mitigate the risk to the Council’s budget. However, the potential 
liability should not be taken into account in deciding whether or not this is an 
asset of community value.  

 
Background Papers 
 

9. The nomination form is appended and can be viewed by the public on the 
website under currently nominated assets  

Impact  
 

10.  Consideration of possible impact:  

Communication/Consultation In line with regulation 8 of The Assets of 
Community Value (England) Regulations 
2012 the Council have taken all practicable 
steps to give information that it is 
considering listing the land to the owner of 
the land, freeholder and occupant. This has 
taken the form of letters. 

Page 7

https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/4955/Currently-nominated-Assets


Community Safety No impact. 

Equalities The duty will affect all equally. 

Health and Safety No impact. 

Human Rights/Legal 
Implications 

Pursuant to s.19 Human Rights Act 1998 
the Secretary of State has certified that in 
his opinion the Localism Act is compatible 
with the Convention rights. 

Sustainability If the land is included on the list of 
Community Assets it will form a Land 
Charge. 

Ward-specific impacts Located in Clavering 

Workforce/Workplace No impact 

 
 
Situation 
 

a) Is this a valid nomination? 

11. S.89 of the Localism Act states that land in a local authority area which is of 
community value may be included in its list of assets of community value only 
in response to a “community nomination”, or where permitted by regulations 
made by the Secretary of State. A community nomination means a nomination 
by a parish council in respect of land in the parish council’s area or “by a 
person that is a voluntary or community body with a local connection”.   

12. The nomination has been made by Clavering Parish Council, including: 

 A map outlining the site and boundary has been submitted 

 A copy of the lease, including parties named on the lease 

 Reasons for nominating (see section b below) 
 

 
13. Clavering Parish Council are named on the Property register, together with 

Cecil Francis Tatham and Frances Dorothea Simpkinson who are both 
deceased. The Parish Council do not know who has inherited the land from 
Tatham and Simpkinson.  Letters have been sent to the addresses written in 
the lease.  6 site notices have been put up around the site, requesting 
descendants or knowledge of the owners to come forward, this request is also 
on the Council’s website https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/4955/Currently-
nominated-assets 

 
14. A nomination must include: 

i. A description of the nominated land including its proposed boundaries.  
ii. Any information the nominator has about the freeholders, leaseholders 

and current occupants of the site.  

Page 8

https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/4955/Currently-nominated-assets
https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/4955/Currently-nominated-assets


iii. The reasons for nominating the asset, with an explanation of why the 
nominator believes the asset meets the definition in the Act.  

iv. Evidence of the nominator’s eligibility to make the nomination. 

15. If it meets these requirements, it is a valid nomination under Localism Act 
S.89(2) and ACV Regulations 2012 regulation 6.  This nomination meets those 
requirements. 

 

b) Does the use of the building (current or recent past) further the social 
wellbeing or social interests of the local community? 

16.  The nomination includes the following facilities: 

 Cricket field / recreational area 

 Thatched cricket pavilion 

 

17. Clavering Parish Council confirm that the recreation land has been used by 
villagers for 140 years and was registered as a village green in 1971.  The 
area forms an important part of open space in Clavering and was previously 
listed as an ACV on 10 December 2015. 
 

18. The site is used for cricket in the season; for walking and dog walking; 
impromptu games and activities including picnics and kite flying; Clavering 
village Christmas carols on the Green. During the covid lockdown the Green 
provided the opportunity for safe walking and outdoor recreation, for all ages 
and especially for elderly residents. 
 

19. Details of cricket fixtures for 2018 - 2021 have been provided, together with a 
letter from Clavering Cricket Club (CCC) confirming that: 

 Cricket has been played on the field since the 1880s, by both men and 
women 

 Currently CCC has 50 members 

 CCC maintains the outfield and the wicket, including cutting the grass 
for village recreational use out of the cricket season 

 CCC erected, maintains and insures the thatched cricket pavilion 

 The CCC hosts, in conjunction with the Parish Council, the Christmas 
Carols on the Green. The money raised supports a village organisation 
which helps elderly residents with travel to medical appointments 

 
20. Further supporting information including letters and photographs confirm use 

for dog walking, athletic activities and the carols can be viewed in using the 
‘search planning applications’ function on the Council’s website here. Enter 
reference number UTT/21/2181/ACV into the search box. 
  

21. Non-ancillary use: To be listed, an actual current use of the nominated asset 
that furthers the social wellbeing or social interests of the local community, 
must be a main or principal use, it must not be an ancillary use. The activities 
listed in the nomination are considered to be non-ancillary use. 

Page 9

https://publicaccess.uttlesford.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application


 
22. The ‘local community’: To be listed, an Asset must benefit the ‘local 

community’. The nomination states that Hill Green is used by: 

 People living in Clavering and the surrounding villages including 
Arkesden, Wicken Bonhunt and Berden 

 Members of the Cricket Club 

 Local interest groups and gatherings using the cricket pavilion 
 

 

c) Is it realistic to think that in the next 5 years the use of the building 
could further the social wellbeing or social interests of the 
community? 

23. About the leasehold tenancy: Clavering Parish Council are tenants with a 
lease defining the agreement between the Landlords (Tatham and 
Simpkinson) for Hill Green.  Research conducted by Clavering Parish Council 
has identified that FD Simpkinson died in 1961 and CT Tatham died in 1974. 
The lease is 99 years, dated 24 June 1949.  There are 27 years remaining on 
the lease. The peppercorn rent has never been demanded.   

24. Although Clavering Parish Council are leaseholders of the land until 24 March 
2048 there remains the possibility that the freehold may be sold to another 
party before the lease expires and without their knowledge. 

25. Should the Hill Green come up for sale, Clavering Parish Council would bid for 
the asset, with funding from their reserves or raised by a Public Works Loan.  

26. The Parish Council anticipate that CCC would continue to voluntarily maintain 
the cricket field, wicket and pavilion.  

27. The Parish Council maintains the trees on the site and any seats. 

28. It is considered realistic that in the next 5 years, use of Hill Green will further 
the social wellbeing or social interests of the local community. 

 

Conclusion 

29. This is a valid nomination. 

30. Members need to consider whether the evidence provided shows that the 
property, current or in the recent past, furthers the social wellbeing or interests 
of the community. 

31. Members need to consider whether it is realistic to think that the Hill Green 
can continue to be used in a manner that furthers the social wellbeing and 
interests of the local community.  

32. Members need to consider the site to be nominated – the cricket field 
/recreation land and cricket pavilion   

Page 10



33. Consideration of these issues will lead the Committee to determine whether 
Hill Green, Clavering, should be listed as assets of community value for a 
period of five years.  

 

Risk Analysis 

34.  

Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigating 
actions 

The 
nominating 
body or the 
owner is 
unhappy with 
the decision 
reached. 

High risk 
that one of 
the bodies 
will be 
unhappy 
with the 
decision. 

The owner has rights of 
internal review and appeal 
and can claim for 
compensation. 

The nominating body does 
not have rights of review or 
appeal. A new nomination 
can be made with additional 
information. 

If it felt the Council had 
acted unlawfully, it could 
seek to challenge by way of 
judicial review. 

Carefully 
scrutinise 
submissions for 
inclusion on the 
Asset List so as 
to ensure only 
those which 
comply with the 
criteria are 
included. 

 

 
1 = Little or no risk or impact 
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary. 
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required 
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.  

 
 
 

Appendices 
 

Appendix 1: Site nominated 

Appendix 2: Extracts from the Nomination Form 
The full nomination from can be found here: 
https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/4955/Currently-nominated-Assets 
 
Appendix 3: Letter from Clavering Cricket Club 
 
Appendix 4: site photos 

 

Appendix 1: Site nominated 

The boundary as shown in Land Registry EX 751779 

Page 11

https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/4955/Currently-nominated-Assets


 

 
  

Page 12



Appendix 2: Extracts from the Nomination Form and additional information 
requested 
 

 

 

Page 13



  
 
 
The appendices listed can be viewed in using the ‘search planning applications’ 
function on the Council website here. Enter reference number UTT/21/2181/ACV into 
the search box 

 

Page 14

https://publicaccess.uttlesford.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application


 

 

Page 15



Appendix 3: Letter from Clavering Cricket Club 
 

 

Page 16



Appendix 4: site photos 

 

  4 July 2021 
 
 

  4 July 2021 

 

  25 January 2021 

Page 17


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	3 Nomination of Hill Green as an Asset of Community Value

